
City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, February 3, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.     (a)    The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted,
shall amend Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)   All persons who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed
bylaws shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws that are the subject of this
hearing.  This Hearing is open to the public and all representations to Council form
part of the public record.  A live audio feed may be broadcast and recorded by
Castanet.

(c)   All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received
concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public.  The
correspondence and petitions received after January 20, 2015 (date of notification)
are available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on the
information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)   Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to take place during the
Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted,
however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be reached tonight.

(e)   It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from the
applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the Hearing was publicized.

1



3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 1975 Union Road, BL10996 (TA14-0015) - Amendment to C5 - Transition
Commerical Zone

4 - 18

To amend the C5 - Transition Commercial zone by replacing the previously
recommended "Service Stations, Minor" use with the "Rapid Drive-Through
Vehicle Services" use on one explicit legal parcel.

3.2 828, 834, 871 & 877 McCurdy Place, BL11039 (Z14-0045) - Harmony Holdings
Limited

19 - 25

To consider a Rezoning application to rezone the subject properties from the
I1 - Business Industrial zone to the I2 - General Industrial zone.

3.3 Kettle Valley, Various Addresses, BL11046 (TA14-0013) - Kettle Valley
Development Ltd.

26 - 32

To seek approval for changes to the development regulations and housekeeping
amendments in the CD2 Comprehensive Zone 2, Kettle Valley Comprehensive
Residential Development zone.

3.4 650-652 Wardlaw Avenue, BL11049 (Z14-0055) - Loren & Janette Desautels 33 - 53

To rezone the subject property in order to permit a fourplex.

3.5 545 Radant Road, BL11052 (Z14-0053) - Stacey Lynn Fenwick 54 - 70

To rezone the subject property from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone in order to develop a duplex.

3.6 385 Cadder Avenue, BL11053 (Z14-0056) - Andrew & Lesley Wilson 71 - 83

To rezone the subject property from RU1-Large Lot Housing to RU1C-Large Lot
Housing with Carriage House in order to develop a carriage house.

4. Termination

2



5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a)     Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land Use Management);

(b)     The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate all information,
correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record.

(c)     The applicant is requested to make representation to Council regarding the
project and is encouraged to limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)     The Chair will call for representation from the public in attendance as follows:

    (i)     The microphone at the public podium has been provided for any person(s)
wishing to make representation at the Hearing.

     (ii)     The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the podium.

     (iii)     Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes, however, if
they have additional information they may address Council again after all other
members of the public have been heard a first time.

(e)     Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given an
opportunity to respond to any questions raised.  The applicant is requested to keep
the response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(f)     Questions by staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public
Hearing is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless
for clarification.

(g)     Final calls for respresentation (ask three times).  Unless Council directs that the
Public Hearing on the bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to the
gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note:  Any applicant or member of the public may use visual aids (e.g. photographs,
sketches, slideshows, etc.) to assist in their presentation or questions.  The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are available.  Please ask staff for
assistance prior to your item if required.

3



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: December 15, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: TA14-0015 Owner: 657139 BC Ltd. 

Address: 1975 Union Road Applicant: 
Dawn Williams (D.E. Pillings 
& Associates) 

Subject: 2015 01 12 Report TA14-0015 Amended 1975 Union Rd  

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial 

Existing Zone: C5 – Transition Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council receives, for information, the Supplemental Report from the Urban Planning 
Department dated December 8, 2014 with respect to Text Amendment Application No. TA14-
0015; 

AND THAT Council rescinds second and third reading given to Bylaw No. 10996; 

AND THAT Council directs staff to amend Bylaw No. 10996 at first reading to delete “Service 
Stations, Minor” and replace it with “Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services” as a Principal Use for 
one explicit legal parcel within the C5 – Transition Commercial zone; 

AND THAT Text Amendment Bylaw No. 10996, as amended, be forwarded to a Public Hearing for 
further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Text Amendment Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Real Estate Department; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Text Amendment Bylaw be considered in conjunction 
with Council’s consideration of a Development Permit for the subject property. 

2.0 Purpose 

To amend the C5 – Transition Commercial zone by replacing the previously recommended 
“Service Stations, Minor” use with the “Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services” use on one explicit 
legal parcel. 

  

4



TA14-0015 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the proposed text amendment to the Zoning Bylaw. Upon further review 
of the original application, Urban Planning determined that Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services 
is the more appropriate use, rather than the previously recommended Service Stations, Minor 
use. As with the previous report, Staff suggests adding Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services as a 
permitted use to C5 – Transition Commercial for this parcel only (and not as a permitted use in 
the entire C5 zone).  

Service Stations, Minor, which allows for vehicle washing, also allows for servicing and repair of 
vehicles within a building. These are uses that would not be considered appropriate due to the 
proximity to adjacent residential and the type of work involved. Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle 
Services specifically indicates coin operated car washes within this use. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In December, 2013 the applicant sumitted a proposal for a car wash on Glenmore Road that was 
subsequently rejected by Council. Council’s decision was based on neighbourhood concerns 
regarding noise and the proposed location adjacent to a park. 

In August, 2014, Staff brought the recommendation of Service Stations, Minor before Council. 
Second and third readings were received on September 9, 2014 after the Public Hearing held on 
the same date. 

The Development Permit and Text Amendment applications have undergone revisions to ensure 
they meet the intent of the Zoning Bylaw. Through this process, it was determined that Rapid 
Drive-Through Vehicle Services would be the most appropriate use for this site specific 
application. 

4.2 Project Description 

Staff received an application for a car wash in this new location along Glenmore Road by the 
same applicant. The subject site is located at Union Road and is currently zoned C5 – Transition 
Commercial. Based on the location of the site, C5 is the appropriate zone for this parcel because 
it is used to provide for limited commercial on the edge of a community or as a transition to 
residential. However, it does not list Rapid Drive-Through Vehicle Services as an allowed use.  

The proposed car wash is located on a larger site allowing the developers to provide adequate 
landscaping and buffering as per the Zoning Bylaw. One site access is proposed off of Union road. 
These details are currently being determined through the development permit process. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the south corner of Glenmore Road and Union Road. 
Neighbouring the site is North Glenmore Elementary School and a vacant lot to the north, a 
vacant medium density multiple residential lot and small park to the northwest, a single family 
dwelling on an agriculture lot to the northeast, and low density row housing to the south. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Future Land Use 

North P2 – Education and Minor Institutional EDINST – Educational / Institutional 

West 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing, P3 – 
Parks and Open Space 

MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium 
Density), PARK – major Park and Open 
Space 

5



TA14-0015 – Page 3 

 
 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 REP – Resource Protection Area 

South RM2 – Low Density Row Housing 
MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low 
Density) 

 
Subject Property Map: 1975 Union Road 

 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Height Max. 

(To mid-point of roof) 
9.50m 8.41m 

Front Yard 4.5m 10.67m (Union Rd) 

Side Yard  
(Flanking Street) 

4.5m 4.52m (Glenmore Rd) 

Rear Yard 6.0m 8.7m 

Site Coverage Max. 40.0% 15.6% 

Floor Area Ratio Max. 0.4 0.26 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Requirements Staff parking = 1 stall 2 stalls provided 

Min. Uncovered Space 370m2 / wash bay 282m2 / wash bay 

6



TA14-0015 – Page 4 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 
Upstream Vehicle Storage 

(Automated) 
5/ bay = 10 req. 10 spaces provided 

Upstream Vehicle Storage 
(Manual Wash) 

2/ bay = 10 req. 10 spaces provided 

 Indicates required variance for uncovered space. 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

Recognizing that car washes can be both land consumptive and nuisance generating, the Zoning 
Bylaw provides specific rules for car wash developments. One of these regulations addresses the 
proportion of the site covered by buildings by requiring a minimum amount of land area per wash 
bay that is to remain free of buildings. The requirement is 370m2 per wash bay. Contrary to the 
applicant’s original proposal where they were only able to supply 194m2 per bay, this proposal is 
large enough to provide 283m2 per bay as well as a wide landscaping buffer from the adjacent 
residential area. The previous application was not able to provide the appropriate landscape 
buffer. 

Design details and confirmation of required variances will be further explored when the 
applicants makes their permits applications. 

The proposal is also consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) future land use 
designation. The subject parcel is designated Commercial. 

Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Retention of Commercial Land.1 In order to ensure that the City’s commercial land supply is not 
eroded, where the OCP Bylaw 10500 indicated a commercial land use designation for the 
property, the expectation would be that there be no net loss of commercial space on the site as 
a result of the redevelopment to include other uses. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum dated November 12, 2014. 

6.2 Fire Department 

 Ensure appropriate unobstructed distance to a fire hydrant and proper fire department 
access. A visible address must be posted as per City of Kelowna By-Laws.  

6.3 FortisBC – Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities along Union Road.  The applicant is responsible 
for costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any, as 
well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

6.4 Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.24.2 (Development Process Chapter). 

7



TA14-0015 – Page 5 

 
 

 See attached letter dated October 30, 2014. 

6.5 Real Estate and Building Services 

 Please work with Real Estate Services for the required SRW for storm on property. Also, 
please note significant landscaping is proposed over required SRW area. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

 
Date of Application Received: June 26, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:     Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Schedule ‘A’ - Proposed Text Amendment 
Conceptual Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
GEID Letter 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 26, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: Z14-0045 Owner: 
Harmony Holdings Limited, 

Inc. No. 78095 

Address: 
828, 834, 871 and 877 McCurdy 
Place 

Applicant: 
DTZ Barnicke Vancouver 
Limited (Murray Wills) 

Subject: 2014 12 08 Report  Z14-0045  828 834 871 877 McCurdy Pl 

Existing OCP Designation: IND - Industrial 

Existing Zone: I1 – Business Industrial 

Proposed Zone: I2 – General Industrial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0045 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 24, 26, 27,and 29, District Lot 124, ODYD, Strata 
Plan KAS3323 together with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit 
entitlement of the strata lot as shown on Form V located on 828, 834, 871 and 877 McCurdy 
Place, Kelowna, BC from the I1 – Business Industrial zone to the I2 – General Industrial zone as 
shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated November 26, 
2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Rezoning application to rezone the subject properties from the I1 – Business 
Industrial zone to the I2 – General Industrial zone. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning staff supports the rezoning request to the I2 zone to allow general industrial uses 
on the subject properties. The Official Community Plan supports more intensive use of under-
utilized industrial sites, and encourages protection of existing industrial land. Currently, only one 
of the 11 inner lots zoned I1 has been developed with two multi-unit warehouse buildings, and 
several units remain vacant. There has been little interest in developing other lots under the I1 

19



Z14-0045 – Page 2 

 
 

zone. Several of the outer lots zoned I2 have been developed and others have been sold for 
future development. Rezoning the subject properties to the I2 zone protects the industrial land 
supply and supports more efficient use of industrial sites in this area. 

The main differences between the I1 and I2 zones are the permitted uses and regulations 
regarding outdoor storage. The I1 zone allows some light industrial and office uses, with very 
limited outdoor storage. The I2 zone permits a greater range of industrial uses and fewer 
restrictions on outdoor storage. Offices are not a permitted use in the I2 zone. Should Council 
support the rezoning request, applicants will need to demonstrate appropriate buffers between 
the subject properties and adjacent properties through the Development Permit application 
process to minimize potential conflicts between uses. At time of site development, Development 
Permit applications to review the proposed form and character will be required. 

It is important to note that a similar rezoning application has been made for 822 McCurdy Place, 
which is immediately north of 828 McCurdy Place. The applicant has also requested to rezone 
from the I1 to the I2 zone. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours. The Marshall Business Centre 
Strata has expressed support for the proposed rezoning. To date, staff have not been contacted 
with any questions or concerns. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The Marshall Business Centre was created as a bareland strata industrial park in 2007 through 
rezoning and subdivision of a former feedlot. The lots on the outside of McCurdy Place are zoned 
I2 and the inside lots are zoned I1 and are intended for light industrial and office uses with 
limited outdoor storage. Several of the outer lots zoned I2 have been purchased and developed 
with various general industrial uses, including automotive, motorcycle and minor recreational 
vehicle retailers, manufacturing, and equipment sales and rentals. The majority of these uses 
involve some outdoor storage on the property. 

One inner lot zoned I1 was developed in 2012 with two multi-unit buildings, on 840-842 McCurdy 
Place. Some units are occupied while others remain vacant, and there has been no interest in 
other lots zoned I1. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject properties are located within the Marshall Business Centre, southwest of the 
intersection of McCurdy Road and Highway 97 in the City’s Highway 97 Sector. The properties are 
designated IND – Industrial in the Official Community Plan and are within the Permanent Growth 
Boundary. The area surrounding the properties is industrial. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
I1 – Business Industrial (Rezoning application 
Z14-0046 to rezone from I1 to I2) 

Industrial (vacant) 

East I2 – General Industrial Industrial 

South I1 – Business Industrial 
Industrial (multi-unit buildings, some 
vacant) 

West I2 – General Industrial Industrial 

 

20



Z14-0045 – Page 3 

 
 

 

Subject Property Map: 828, 834, 871 and 877 McCurdy Place 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Industrial Land Use Intensification.1 Encourage more intensive industrial use of currently under-
utilized industrial sites during site redevelopment or by permitting lot subdivision where new lots 
can meet the minimum lot size requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. 

Industrial Supply Protection.2 Protect existing industrial lands from conversion to other land 
uses by not supporting the rezoning of industrial land to preclude industrial activities unless there 
are environmental reasons for encouraging a change of use. 

Discourage I1 Zoning.3 Discourage properties from being rezoned to I1 Business Industrial. 
Instead, applicants should be encouraged to pursue a new industrial zone which would be based 
on the I1 Zone, but would preclude “offices” as a permitted use. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comments. 

 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.29.1 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.30.1 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.30.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
 

21



Z14-0045 – Page 4 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated October 21, 2014. 

6.3 Fortis BC - Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities within McCurdy Place. The applicant is 
responsible for costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing 
service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 23, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: September 15, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map  
Map “A” 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

22



23



24



25



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 26, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department 

Application: TA14-0013 Applicant: 

 

Stephen Wells, Kettle Valley 
Development Ltd. 

Subject 
Address: 

Multiple Owner: Multiple 

Title: 2014 12 15 Report TA14-0013 CD2 

Existing Zone: CD2 – Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA13-0013 to amend Section 18, Schedule B CD2 – 
Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development Zone of City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 as outlined in the report from Urban Planning dated December 8, 2014 be considered by 
Council.  

AND THAT the Text Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration. 

AND THAT final adoption of the Text Amendment Bylaw be considered subsequent to the review 
and approval of the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure; 

2.0 Purpose 

To seek approval for changes to the development regulations and housekeeping amendments in 
the CD2 Comprehensive Zone 2, Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development zone. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The proposed text amendment to the CD2 zone is a result of the current Type I, “Hillside Single 
Family” setbacks being too restrictive to implement for hillside development as they the size of 
the building envelope area. When the CD2 zone was first adopted in the mid 1990’s the City had 
little experience using specific setback requirements for hillside development.  In the last few 
years greater consideration has been given to the impact the setback requirements have on 
development in the hillside areas and having reduced setbacks has resulted in more suitable 
building envelopes.  For comparison, parcels designated Type 1 in the CD2 zone require a 6.0 m 
front yard setback  whereas the front yard setback requirement in the RU1h – Large Lot Housing 

26



TA14-0013 – Page 2 

 
 

(Hillside Area) zone is 3.0 m, except for a garage which is 6.0 m measured from the back of curb.  
Therefore, the proposed amendments will provide greater clarity and consistency with other 
hillside zone setbacks. 

In addition to the proposed revisions to the setback requirements, the text amendment 
application proposes to replace the original CD2 illustrations, which detail the development 
design rules for the specific development “Type”, with a table which will correspond to a revised 
Map 1 – Overview Map. The table is being introduced for ease of interpretation and 
implementation.  

The Urban Planning Department supports the proposed text amendments to the CD2 Zone a 
summary of which is: 

 Map 1 has been amended so that parcels previously designated under Type I, “Hillside 
Single Family”  will be re-designated Type III “Village/Park Single Family”  

 removing Type I “Hillside Single Family” from the CD2 zone 

 Map 1 has been amended so that parcels previously designated under Type VII “Cluster 
Estate” will be re-designated Type III “Village/Park Single Family”.  

 amendments to the development regulations for Type III “Village/Park Single Family type” 

 replacing illustrations (Map pages 2 – 17) detailing with a table which coordinates with 
Map 1 

These changes will improve the clarity and implementation of the CD2 regulations. 

4.0 Application Chronology 

 
Date of Application Received: July 30, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lauren Morhart, Urban Planner 
 
 
Approved for Inclusion: 
 

     Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager  
 
 

Attachments: 

Schedule ‘A’ - Proposed Text Amendment 
Schedule ‘B’ - Subject Property Map 
Schedule ‘B’ – Map 1 showing proposed changes 
Schedule ‘C’ – Final Map 1 
Schedule ‘D’ – Table  
 

27



28



29



30



31



32



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: December 1, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z14-0055 Owner: Loren & Janette Desautels 

Address: 650-652 Wardlaw Ave Applicant: Mark Ameerali 

Subject: Rezoning  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0055 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 1 & 2, District Lot 14, ODYD, Strata Plan KAS3613 
together with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the 
strata lot as shown on Form V, located at 650-652 Wardlaw Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the RU6 – 
Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT a section 219 covenant be registered on title stating that the land and any buildings 
shall not be used or occupied until such time as a occupancy permit can be issued by the city and 
that the occupancy permit must be obtained by the owner no later than 120 days after the 
issuance of the Building Permit. Further, that the covenant require the owner to submit a 
building permit no later than 30 days after the date of adoption of the rezoning bylaw.  

2.0 Purpose  

To rezone the subject property in order to permit a fourplex.  

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff support the proposed rezoning proposal to allow for the Four Dwelling Housing use (RM1). 

The Multiple Residential Low Density (MRL) land use designation permits the proposed RM1 – 
FourDwelling Housing zone. Several nearby properties have successfully rezoned to the RM1 zone. 
The proposed multi-family use is consistent with the Future Land Use designation  (Objective 
5.22, Policy .5 – Multi Unit in Character Areas) and redevelopment to a fourplex would be 

33



Z14-0055 – Page 2 

 
 

consistent with the existing transition character of the neighbourhood (Objective 5.22, Policy .6 – 
Sensitive Infill).  

Staff are recommending a Section 219 restrictive covenant be registered on title outlining that 
the building must meet the minimum safety standards for a multi-family building as outlined in 
the BC Building Code and further restricts the use and occupancy of the property until such time 
as the necessary renovations can be completed.  

To address Council Policy No. 367 with respect to public consultation, the applicant has 
undertaken neighbour consultation by individually contacting the adjacent neighbours as 
described in the attached Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during the initial 
consultation with neighbouring parcels. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In 2007, a Development Permit was reviewed and approved for a duplex house. In 2013, bylaw 
enforcement action was taken on the subject property after the investigation confirmed the 
duplex was being used as a fourplex. The conversion to a fourplex was done without proper 
permits and the owner was given the option to decommission the additional units or to legalize 
the fourplex.  

4.2 Project Description 

The subject property has a land use designation of MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
in the Official Community Plan (OCP) and is currently zoned RU6 (Two Dwelling Housing). The 
subject property is within a Character Neighbourhood Development Permit Area which requires 
that all multi-family developments acquire a Comprehensive Development Permit to review the 
form and character of the proposed development prior to the building permit. 

The current building meets all the setback and parking requirements for a duplex in the RU6 - 
Two  Dwelling Housing zone. However, after rezoning to allow for a fourplex, the RM1 – Four 
Dwelling Housing zone has increased side yard setback requirements (up from 2.3 metres to 2.5 
metres). One side of the building would not meet the 2.5 metre setback requirement, however, 
no variance would be required because the new zone (if approved) grants existing non -
conforming status to the building. Additionally, section 8.1.9 of Zoning Bylaw no. 8000 states: 
“except for developments with 2 or less dwelling units, no off-street parking shall be located 
within 1.5 metres of any side or rear property line.” The applicant will need a variance for this 
parking setback rule as the minimum parking for their four dwelling units is six parking stalls and 
this can only be arranged along the rear property line with 0.5 metres as the setback distance. 

 

 

 

 

 

34



Z14-0055 – Page 3 

 
 

4.3 Site Context 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing & 

RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 
Residential  

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

South 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing & 

P3 – Parks and Open Space 

Residential 

Park 

West 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing & 

RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 
Residential 

 
 

Subject Property Map:  650-652 Wardlaw Ave 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



Z14-0055 – Page 4 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Site Details 

Lot Area 700 m2 910.4 m2 

Lot Width 20 m 21.3 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 42.7 m 

Site Coverage Buildings Max 40 % 34.9 % 

Site Coverage Buildings, 
Driveways and parking 

Max 50 % 40.0 % 

Front Yard Min 4.5 m 4.5 m 

Side Yard (east) Min 2.5 m 2.8 m 

Side Yard (west) Min 2.5 m 2.3 m  

Rear Yard Min 7.5 m 7.5 m 

Height of buildings/number of 
storeys 

Max 9.5m / 2½ Storeys 7.3 m / 2 stories 

Floor Area Ratio Max 0.6 0.252 

Number of on-site parking stalls Min 6 Min 6 

Setbacks from lot line to parking Min 1.5m  0.5 m  

Private Open Space Min 75 m² Min 87.8 m² 

 Variance not needed as building will get non-conforming siting protection if zoning is approved. 

 A variance will be required and will be considered at Development Permit stage if zoning is approved. 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

36



Z14-0055 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s). 

 A central water service is required to a common mechanical room well as separate 
heating systems for each unit. An upgrade of the water piping system to the house 
as well as the distribution system with the house may be required.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: November 13th 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:  November 24th 2014 

Report prepared by: 

 
     
Adam Cseke, Urban Planner  
 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 

Development Engineering Memo 
Site Plan 
Floor Plans 
Conceptual Elevations 
Context/Site Photos 
Draft Covenant 

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: December 22, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: Z14-0053 Owner: Stacey Lynn Fenwick 

Address: 545 Radant Road Applicant: Stacey Lynn Fenwick 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential  

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing  

Proposed Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0053 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 3 Section 1 Township 25 ODYD Plan 8768, located on 545 
Radant Road, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two Dwelling 
Housing zone be considered by Council. 

AND THAT the zone amending bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 

2.0 Purpose  

To rezone the subject property from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing zone in order to develop a duplex. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning supports the proposed rezoning application on the subject property. The property 
is designated in Kelowna’s Official Community Plan as S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential and as 
such the application to rezone the property to RU6 to facilitate a duplex is in compliance with 
the designated future land use. The proposed rezoning would allow construction of a duplex and 
would be the first of its kind on Radant Road. City staff would like to see a development design 
that sets a high standard for this neighbourhood in the beginning stages of its revitalization. The 
proposed design put forth by the applicant shows a commitment to quality design and materials, 
and does not require any variances to the Zoning Bylaw.  

54



Z14-0053 – Page 2 

 
 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours. To date staff has not received 
any comments. 

The OCP supports the densification of neighbourhoods through appropriate infill development and 
utilization of existing infrastructure such as the development of two dwelling housing. Overall, 
the proposed rezoning fits with what Staff foresee happening along Radant Road. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject property currently contains a 1950’s single family home that will be demolished. The 
proposed RU6 zoning will allow for the construction of a two storey duplex. The duplex proposed 
for the site includes private open space in the form of rooftop patios for each dwelling. New 
construction in this area must adhere to the minimum floor elevations for Okanagan floodplain 
areas. As a result, many homes in this neighbourhood average two storeys as basements are not 
viable. This proposed duplex will need to meet requirements for this minimum elevation prior to 
Building Permit issuance. Privacy of private open space of the neighbouring properties will need 
to be addressed during the Development Permit application. The applicant will be required to 
demonstrate that the proposed rooftop patios do not allow sightlines into the private open space 
of the adjacent properties. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on Radant Road in the Mission Sector of Kelowna. This property is 
near Mission Creek however it is not within the natural environmental DP area of the creek. The 
property is currently zoned RU1, identified in Kelowna’s OCP as single / two unit residential, and 
is within the permanent growth boundary. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 Single Family Dwelling 

East RU1 Single Family Dwelling 

South RU1 Single Family Dwelling 

West RU1 Single Family Dwelling 

  

55



Z14-0053 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map:  545 Radant Road 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 700m2 749m2 

Lot Width 18.0m 19.5m 

Lot Depth 30.0m 47.2m 

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage of Buildings 40% 36% 

Site Coverage o Buildings, 
Deriveways, and Parking 

50% 47% 

Height 9.5m 9.5m 

Front Yard 6.0m 6m 

Side Yard (south) 2.3m 2.3m 

Side Yard (north) 2.3m 2.3m 

Rear Yard 7.5m 7.5m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 4 spaces 2 covered garage 2 exterior 

Private Open Space 30m2 each dwelling 93m2 each dwelling 

 

  

56



Z14-0053 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to be 
sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, height 
and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 12). 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached Memorandum dated November 19, 2014 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. Ensure 
separate addressing for each unit is off of Radant Rd. 

6.4 FortisBC Inc – Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities along Radant Road.  The applicant is responsible 
for costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any as 
well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required.  

6.5 Telus 

 TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required 
to supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  November 10, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: December 16, 2014  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

57



Z14-0053 – Page 5 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Schedule “A” - Conceptual Site Plan 
Schedule “B” - Conceptual Elevations 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: December 17, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: Z14-0056 Owner: Andrew & Lesley Wilson 

Address: 385 Cadder Avenue Applicant: Lesley Wilson 

Subject: Rezoning Application 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU1C – Large Lot Housing With Carriage House  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0056 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 2, District Lot 14, ODYD Plan 3305, located on 385 
Cadder Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1C – Large Lot 
Housing with Carriage House zone be considered by Council. 

AND THAT the zone amending bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose  

To rezone the subject property from RU1-Large Lot Housing to RU1C-Large Lot Housing with 
Carriage House in order to develop a carriage house. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning supports the proposed rezoning application on the subject property. The property 
is designated in Kelowna’s Official Community Plan as S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential and, 
as such, the application to rezone the property to RU1C to facilitate a carriage house is in 
compliance with the designated future land use. In addition, the OCP supports the densification 
of neighbourhoods through appropriate infill development and utilization of existing 
infrastructure such as the development of carriage housing. 

A two storey home and detached two storey garage are currently being constructed on the 
subject property. The applicant has received a Heritage Alteration Permit as well as a Building 

71



Z14-0056 – Page 2 

 
 

Permit for both structures. The applicant is now seeking to add a dwelling in the second storey of 
the detached garage. The siting and exterior design of the detached garage is unchanged, still 
adhering to the Heritage Alteration Permit granted when the second storey was designed as a 
bonus room. The proposed dwelling above the detached garage meets the zoning requirements 
for a carriage house in an RU1C zone. Overall the proposed rezoning fits with what Staff foresee 
happening on this neighbourhood. Staff recommends the rezoning application. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by contacting the neighbours in person. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the property to RU1C in order to allow a dwelling above the 
detached garage. The dwelling unit will require a building permit and the detached garage will 
require a new building permit to review the living space. Both the principal dwelling and carriage 
house on the subject property are designed with an Arts and Crafts architectural style which fits 
in with the neighbouring style. No variances are required, and parking and private open space is 
accommodated for on site. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the corner of Cadder Avenue and Long Street in the Pandosy 
sector of Kelowna. The property is currently zoned RU1, identified in Kelowna’s OCP as 
Single/Two Unit Residential, and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. Surrounding 
properties are predominantly zoned RU1 with RU6 and RU1C zones throughout the 
neighbourhood.  

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 
Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1  Single Family Dwelling 

East RU1 Single Family Dwelling 

South RU6 Empty Lot 

West RU1 Single Family Dwelling 

 
  

72



Z14-0056 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 385 Cadder Avenue 
 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
RU1C  ZONE Carriage 
House REQUIREMENTS 

PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 550m2 880m2 

Lot Width 17.0m 23.6m 

Lot Depth 30.0m 37.2m 

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage: Buildings 40% 40% 

Site Coverage: Buildings, Driveways & Parking 50% 46% 

Lot coverage: accessory buildings or structures 
and carriage house  

14% 7.5% 

Area of accessory buildings, structures and 
carriage house 

90m2 56m2 

Maximum net floor area to total net floor area 
of principal building 

75% 46% 

Height 4.8m 9.5m 

Setback from Principal Dwelling 3.0m 3.0m 

Side Yard (west) 2.3m 8.0m 

Side Yard (east) 6.0m 6.0m 

Rear Yard 1.5m 2.1m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements (2 principal )1 carriage 5 

Private Open Space 30m2 each dwelling 93m2 each dwelling 

73



Z14-0056 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to be 
sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, height 
and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 12). 

 Provide the City of Kelowna Bulletin #88-02 (Secondary Suites Requirements in a single 
family dwelling) for minimum requirements. The drawings submitted for Building Permit 
application is to indicate the method of fire separation between the suite and the main 
dwelling.  

 Range hood above the stove and the washroom to vent separately to the exterior of the 
building. The size of the penetration for this duct thru a fire separation is restricted by 
BCBC 12, so provide size of ducts and fire separation details at time of Building Permit 
Applications. 

 A fire rated exit stairwell may be required from the suite to the exterior. Please provide 
these details on the building permit drawing sets. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See the attached memorandum dated November 19, 2014 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met.  

 If a fence is ever constructed between the dwellings a gate with a clear width of 1100mm 
is required. Any gate is to open without special knowledge.  

 Additional visible address is required to be viewable from Cadder Ave. 
 
  

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

74



Z14-0056 – Page 5 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  November 13, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: April 14, 2014  
 
 
Report prepared by: 

 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Schedule “A” Site Plan 
Schedule “B” Elevations 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83


	Agenda
	3.1 2015 01 12 Report TA14-0015 Amended 1975 Union Rd.pdf
	3.1 2014 01 12 Attachments TA14-0015 1975 Union Rd.pdf
	3.2 2014 12 08 Report  Z14-0045  828 834 871 877 McCurdy Pl.pdf
	3.2 2014 12 08 Attachments Z14-0045 McCurdy Pl.pdf
	3.3 2014 12 15 Report TA14-0013 CD2.pdf
	3.3 2014 12 15 Attachments TA14-0013 CD2 Zone.pdf
	3.4 2015 01 12 Report Z14-0055 Wardlaw Ave 650-652.pdf
	3.4 2015 01 12 Attachments Z14-0055 Wardlaw 650 652.pdf
	3.5 2015 01 19 Report Z14-0053 545 Radant Rd.pdf
	3.5 2015 01 19 Attachments Z14-0053 545 Radant Rd.pdf
	3.6 2015 01 19 Report Z14-0056 385 Cadder.pdf
	3.6 2015 01 19 Attachments Z14-0056 385 Cadder Ave.pdf

